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Southern Gas Networks plc
Strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2018

This strategic report sets out the main trends and factors underlying the development and performance
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018 as well as those matters which are likely to
affect its future development and performance. '

The business, its objectives and strategy

The Company operates the regulated gas transportation business for the South and South East of
England gas distribution network, one of eight regional gas distribution networks in the United
Kingdom. lts gas distribution network comprises approximately 49,000 kilometres of gas mains
delivering natural gas to approximately 4.0 million domestic, commercial and industrial customers.
The network stretches from Milton Keynes in the north, to Dover in the east and Lyme Regis in the
west, including London boroughs to the south of the River Thames.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of SGN MidCo Limited. The ultimate parent undertaking
is Scotia Gas Networks Limited (“SGN"), which is registered at St. Lawrence House, Station Approach,
Horley, Surrey, RH6 9HJ. SGN is owned by a consortium made up of SSE plc, Borealis Infrastructure
Europe (UK) Limited, which is indirectly wholly owned by OMERS Administration Corporation, OTPPB
investments (U.K.) Limited, which is owned by Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan Board and Blue Spyder
B 2016 Limited, which is owned by Abu Dhabi Investment Authority. References to the “Group”
throughout this Report mean SGN and its subsidiaries (including the Company).

The Company'’s business is regulated by the Office of Gas and Electricity Markets (“Ofgem”).

Objectives and strategy

The Company's principal objectives are to deliver natural gas safely, reliably and efficiently across the
gas distribution network and to provide the highest standard of service to our stakeholders, whilst
delivering value to our shareholders. Its strategy therefore places the highest emphasis on ensuring
activities are carried out safely and that the networks operate in a reliable and efficient manner, so that
benchmarks and regulatory targets can be exceeded to the benefit of all its stakeholders.

The Company'’s overall financial objective is to focus on operational efficiency and the efficient delivery
of capital and replacement expenditure programmes. Therefore, financial objectives are set to ensure
the regulatory targets are achieved or outperformed.

The Company's financing objective is to ensure an efficient capital structure that mitigates interest rate
risk through maintaining a minimum of 75% of debt at either fixed rates of interest or index linked.

External and regulatory environment

The management and operation of the Company's gas transportation assets are subject to a series of
legislative requirements to ensure that assets are managed and operated in a safe and reliable
manner. The Company must also ensure that arrangements are in place to respond to emergency
situations and to ensure hazardous work is carried out safely and with minimum disruption.

The primary legislation controlling the Company’s activities as a gas transporter is the Gas Act 1986
(as amended). Under the Gas Act, the Company holds a licence that allows it to operate the gas
distribution network it owns. The Company is regulated by Ofgem, which has established price control
mechanisms that govern the amount of revenue that can be earned by regulated businesses. Ofgem
assesses the revenue and investment plans of the Company to determine an efficient level of
expenditure and the quality of service requirements for the network are also taken into account. A cost
of capital for the required investment in the networks is also determined.

The Company is also subject to safety legislation which is enforced by the Health and Safety Executive
(“HSE") in the UK. The Group’s processes and procedures are covered in a safety case which has
been accepted by the HSE. '
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Strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

Factors affecting the business

The Company’s principal activity is the operation of a highly complex gas infrastructure network. As a
consequence, there are a number of factors that may influence the development and performance of
the Company and the financial returns that can be achieved. The principal factors that influence the
Company are as follows:

Regulatory price controls

As outlined above. the prices that can be charged for the use of the Company’s networks are
determined in accordance with regulator approved price controls. The outcome of the eight-year
review baselined the revenues that will be obtained over the price control period. In addition,
targeted incentive schemes were introduced by the regulator whereby the Company can earn
additional revenues by outperforming the targets, or alternatively penalised if the Company does
not meet them.

Additionally, the regulatory price controls include an allowed rate of return for the investment the
Company makes in the network. The level of the allowed rate of return determines the extent to
which investment to increase the quality and capacity of the network is economically viable.

Safety and reliability of the networks

The Company's ability to operate the networks safely and reliably is of the highest importance. Its
performance in these areas affects the costs it incurs and the overall financial performance.

Efficiency

The Company’s objective is to ensure that gas is delivered as efficiently as possible through its
network. This allows the Company to limit price increases and improve its own financial
performance.

Interest rates

The costs of financing our operations are affected by changes in interest rates as some of the
Company's borrowings are held at floating rates. Exposure to changes in interest rates are hedged
by holding both fixed rate and index linked borrowings and by holding derivative financial
instruments (interest rate swaps) where necessary to achieve the desired profile of interest rate
risk.
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Strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties

As well as the opportunities the Company has to grow and develop its business, certain risks and
uncertainties are faced in achieving its objectives. The principal risks and uncertainties identified are as

follows:

Description and Impact of Risk

Mitigation

Health and safety: Failures in the design
or implementation of our safety, health
and environmental management system
may result in unsafe behaviour and
working practices resulting in injuries or
fatalities involving employees, contractors
or members of the public; asset damage
or loss; harm to the environment and
prosecution under relevant legislation.

Safety is the first of our core Company values with a
continued focus across all assets and operations. The
Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee of the
Board and the Engineering Safety Committee (ESC) are
responsible for ensuring our safety, health and environmental
policy is developed and adhered to. Compliance is supported
by independent inspections and an audit programme with
reporting of the issues to ESC. The Safety team has been
restructured with a focus to implement a behavioural safety

| programme and upgrading safety reporting.

Regulatory compliance: Failure to
comply with regulatory requirements could
result in prosecution; damage to our
reputation and; financial penalties.

Structures are in place to deal with issues arising from this
price control. We have experienced regulation, finance and
legal teams which manage and engage with all levels of
Ofgem and Government. A system is in place to track
prevailing energy related issues and to influence regulation
and policy with the relevant authorities. The delivery of
regulatory outputs is measured and monitored on a regular
basis. Regulatory Reporting Packs are now integrated in a
workflow system which strengthens the review process at all -
levels.

Regulatory, legislative change and
political risk: Regulatory, legislative or
political reform could have an adverse
impact on our business model and could
lower returns in the next price control.
There is heightened political uncertainty
due to Brexit negotiations.

We have policy and public affairs specialists who engage
openly and constructively with legislators, officials and other
policy makers on all aspects of energy and related
environment policy. We have a proactive public affairs
campaign with relevant stakeholders to highlight the long-
term value of our networks. For the next price control there is
a dedicated team to manage all aspects of delivering a
successful business plan which meets customers and
stakeholder needs. The team takes the lead in engagement
with stakeholders, regulator, and our leadership team. Our
reviews of UK's decision to leave the EU do not indicate any
material issues for our model but our assessments are
ongoing.

Asset management systems: Failures in
the design or implementation of our asset
management systems including health,
physical security and integrity may resuit
in a major incident leading to loss of life;
adverse impact on the environment; loss
of assets; prosecution under relevant
legislation and; failure to meet our licence
conditions.

We have a comprehensive asset management system and
are accredited by Lloyds Register with the internationally
recognised IS0 55000. We have a strong framework of
engineering governance and risk management to ensure all
assets have a strategic plan through their lifecycle and are
tracked through a number of committees reporting into the
Engineering and Safety Committee. Also on an annual basis
a number of audits and inspections are undertaken. There is
on-going security improvement programme for designated
sites based on Centre for Protection of National
Infrastructure’s good practice. Crisis management and
business continuity plans are regularly evaluated and tested.
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Strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

Cyber security risk and IT service
failure: Failures to implement appropriate
security management of IT systems and
physical assets could result in
unauthorised access to our IT systems;
unauthorized or fraudulent disclosure of
sensitive information; vulnerability to
external cyber-attack.

We continue to manage a long-term information. security
programme intended to reduce the risk that cyber related
attack could harm business resiliency. We conduct regular
internal and external penetration and vulnerability tests of our
network with government approved security partners to
review our security position. Plans are also in place for
recovery and resilience. We have collaborated with the
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) and the
Centre tor Protection of National Infrastructure on cyber risks
and security strategy.

Finance risk: Failure to finance our
obligations and new projects due to
economic climate, lack of availability of
finance, and a failure to set appropriate
targets and sufficient management
information, could lead to inability to -
deliver expected financial returns.

The funding position, including gearing and future cash
requirements, is continually reviewed and managed with
regular updates to the Board. There is frequent dialogue with
banks and credit rating agencies to assess the impacts of
any economic and political change, such as Brexit. We have
diversified our funding platform and achieved a diverse
source of debt. Key performance metrics and business plans
are reviewed by the Executive and Board on a regular basis.

Maintaining a competent, productive
and talented workforce: Failure to
maintain a sufficiently competent, diverse
and productive workforce with effective
relationships and sufficient talent may
result in resource/workload mismatches;
failure to meet licence; regulatory or
legislative requirements or take
advantage of business opportunities.

We maintain a workforce planning and recruitment
programme to ensure critical skills and knowledge are
retained in the business to mitigate against an ageing
workforce. This programme is reviewed regularly at
Executive and Board level. We also use external
benchmarking of employment packages and keep abreast of
general economic and industry developments to ensure we
identify and respond to issues. The appointment of a new HR
Director has provided additional focus on ensuring that our
workforce have the right skills to deliver our future plans.

The Board reviews the principal risks and uncertainties facing the business and considers the risk
management processes in place, which are designed to safeguard assets and to manage, rather than
eliminate, material risks to the achievement of business objectives. These reviews recognise that any
such process can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss. Further details of the processes the Board has in place are also set out in the Corporate‘
Governance Statement on pages 15 to 20.

Stakeholders

The Company has a range of external stakeholders including gas consumers, employees, suppliers and
contractors, its regulator Ofgem, the HSE and local governments and communities. The Company
adopts an open and constructive approach, both in terms of the way it operates, the services it provides
and the impact that its activities have on each of its stakeholders. - The Company encourages and
enables its employees to be active citizens in the communities in which they live and work, through
schemes which support staff who are either raising money for, or giving their time to, UK charities, local
community or youth sports groups. The Company matches eligible fund raising by individual members
of staff.
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Key performance indicators

The Company measures the achievement of its objectives through the use of quantitative assessments
and, where quantitative measures are less relevant, through the use of qualitative assessments. The
principal key performance indicators (“KPIs") which are used to assess whether principal operating
objectives have been achiéved are set out below:

Year ended

Year ended

Key performance o 31 March 31 March
indicator Description 2018 2017
Operating profit Profit before financing costs and taxation £316.2m £349.7m
Capital expenditure Additions to fixed assets £89.6m £80.4m -
Replacement Replacement expenditure is capitalised under £196.2m £177.3m
expenditure FRS 102. It represents the cost of renewing

sections of gas network with modern

polyethylene pipes to improve future safety and

reliability. The sections replaced include mains

.and smaller diameter service plpes which

connect customers and mains.
Debt to RAV ratio? The Compahy's debt to RAV ratio 73.2% 72.1%
Employee lost time Incidents resulting in employees taking time off
incidents work (per 100,000 hours worked) 0.12¢ 0.13%
Customer satisfaction — Results from customer satisfaction surveys
planned interruptions (10 = very satisfied) 8.7 8.82
Customer satisfaction — Results. from customer satisfaction surveys
unplanned interruptions (10 = very satisfied) 9.4° 9.4
Escapes attendance Proportion of uncontrolled escapes attended‘in

one hour - percentage (target 97%) 98.8* 98.4%
Customer complaint This represents the year on year reduction in '
volume reduction complaints expressed as a percentage. 4%* 10%*

Complaint means any expression of
dissatisfaction related to any areas of our
operation.

1 “RAV" is defined as Ofgem Regulatory Asset Value plus adjustments relating to the sharing of out/under performance .
against allowances. Debt for the purposes of the Debt to RAV ratio excludes liabilities arising from derivative financial
instruments. The percentages stated are as at 31 March.

2 Based on customer satisfaction survey reports obtained for the nine-month period ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 for

the Group.

3 Based on customer satisfaction survey reports obtained for the nine-month period ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 for

the Group.

4 This KPI is measured for the Group, and accordingly the data bresented is that for the Group.
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Resources
The Company’s principal resources are its assets and its people.

The Company’s distribution network comprises approximately 49,000 kilometres of gas mains,
together with associated services, plant and machinery and storage facilities.

The Company had 606 full time equivalent employees at 31 March 2018 (2017: 663). It places
considerable value on the involvement of employees and has continued to keep them informed on
matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the
Company during the year. It continues to invest in the development and training of its people in order
to ensure both individual developmental needs and business skill requirements are met:

Financial review

The Company sets out below its financial review for the year ended 31 March 2018. The comparative
figures presented are for the year ended 31 March 2017, as reported in the audlted financial
statements, unless otherwise stated.

Turnover for the year ended 31 March 2018 was £746.1m (2017: £758.0m) and has decreased as a
result of the timing of allowances set out at the start of the price control period. The majority of turnover
was earned from charges made for the provision of gas transportation capacity as well as revenue
based upon gas volumes transported in the year.

Profit for the year before taxation amounted to £197.8m (2017: £243.7m) and profit for the year after
taxation amounted to £159.3m (2017: £240.6m).

Operating profit decreased to £316.2m (2017: £349.7m) driven' by the above-mentioned decrease in
turnover and an increase in expenses due to increases in business rates.

During the year the Company paid dividends of £1,046.5m (2017: £135m). Note that £929.5m of
dividends paid in the year were non-cash and were due to the repayment of amounts owed from the
Company's parent, Scotia Gas Networks Limited, the dividends have been offset agamst the historic
intercompany balance.

Capital expendlture (excluding replacement expenditure) during the year amounted to £89.6m (2017:
£80.4m). Capital expenditure is incurred to ensure that the networks continue to operate at minimum
agreed pressures and that sufficient storage capacity is available to meet instances of peak demand,
as well as when new connections or increased capacity are added to the networks.

Treasury policies and capital structure

The Company’s operations are financed by a combination of equity and retained profits, bank
borrowings and long term bonds. The Company’s funding and liquidity are managed within a
framework of policies and guidelines authorised by the Board of Directors. Further details are set out
" in the Directors’ Report on pages 10 to 14.

As a matter of policy a minimum of 75% of debt is maintained at either fixed rates of interest or index
linked. This policy is kept under review from time to time. Interest rate swaps are used, where
necessary, in order to achieve this desired profile.

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s total senior debt (before issue costs) amounted to £2,767.6
(2017: £2,624.6m) and the debt to RAV ratio was 73.2% (2017: 72.1%). Of the total long-term
borrowings at 31 March 2018, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, 84.4% were
at either fixed rates of interest or were index linked (2017: 81.9%).



Southern Gas Networks plc
Strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

Pension commitments

A significant proportion of the Company’s employees are members of the Scotia Gas Networks Pension
Scheme which provides final salary defined benefits for members.

The Company accounts for any pension asset or liability in accordance with FRS 102. The net pension
asset as at 31 March 2018 was £112.8m (2017: £2.9m). Following the actuarial valuation carried out by
the scheme’s actuary as at 31 March 2015, annual special pension contributions remain at a.similar
level for the Group at £22.4m (Company’s share: £13.4m). These additional contributions will be paid
annually until 31 March 2027 to repair the acluarial deficit In the defined benetit pension scheme. The
Company’s normal contributions remain at 37.3%. The Company’s actuary will undertake a triennial
review during 2018/19 to update the actuarial deficit for recent changes in external and market
conditions.

Liquidity and cash flows

Liquidity is maintained through a mixture of long term borrowings and short-term liquid funds in order
that there are sufficient funds avaitable for the Company’s current and planned operations. Committed
facilities are in place in order to provide funding for future capital and replacement expenditure as well
as to provide sufficient available facilities to meet the seasonal working capital requirements of the
Company. The revolving credit facility was renegotiated in the year to £360m for the Group and is now
in place until March 2023. At 31 March 2018 the Company’s committed undrawn revolving credit facility
amounted to £240.0m (2017: £250.0m).

Counterparty credit risk

The Company transacts with banks for the provision of interest rate and currency hedging transactions.
The Company takes reasonable steps to maintain a minimum credit rating requirement as set out in its
hedging policy; however, it recognises that at times the market conditions for banks can be unusually
tight. At the year end the Company had £2.2m receivable and £43.1m payable relatlng to financial
instruments with bank counterparties.

Dividend policy

The Company’s policy is to distribute to its shareholders any available surplus funds, after taking into
account the cash requirements needed to continue to invest in the business and the Company's level
of gearing, and subject to the availability of distributable profits.

Accounting policies

The Company's accounting policies are set out in note 1 to the financial statements. These accounting
policies have been applied consistently during the year and in the preceding year.

Operational review

Safety
I'njury performance

The Company’s overriding goal is to distribute gas safely and reliably and to ensure a safe workplace
for its workforce with everyone striving towards eliminating injuries. This year the lost time injury
performance rate decreased slightly to 0.12 injuries per 100,000 hours (2017: 0.13).

Board responsibility

The Board has a Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee that is responsible for
monitoring health and safety performance and ensuring the health and safety policy statement is
adhered to. The Committee provides the Board with reports on any key areas identified and further
details on the Committee are set out on page 17 in the Corporate Governance Statement.
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Gas mains replacement programme

The Company replaces the iron pipes with modern polyethylené pipes to improve the safety of the
existing network. Replacement expenditure, primarily of iron pipes, increased to £196.2m (2017:
£177.4m).

Gas escapes standards of service

The Company'’s engineers respond to reports of suspected gas leaks 24 hours a day, 365 days a year,
regardless of from whom people buy their gas. Its engineers aim to attend all uncontrolled gas escapes
within one hour and all controlled gas escapes within two hours. A controlled gas escape is one where
the person reporting it has confirmed that the gas emergency control valve serving the premises has
been turned off and the smell of gas has gone. An uncontrolled gas escape covers all others. The
Company's engineers exceeded Ofgem targets by attending over 98% of uncontrolled gas escapes
within one hour.

Gas networks’ regulation

Gas network companies . are subject to economic regulation through Price Control Reviews set by
industry regulator Ofgem. The current eight-year price control (R11O) commenced in April 2013 and runs
through until March 2021. ’

Revenues are earned through charges levied on network users, to cover costs and earn a return on the
network company’s regulated assets. Ofgem also has incentives in the price control to encourage
greater efficiency, innovation and delivery of an enhanced standard of service for customers.

With five years of RIIO complete the Company has performed well on outputs set by the regulator,
including those for innovation, customer satisfaction and stakeholder engagement. .

Further details ‘ '

Further details on the long-term development plans of the Company can be found in the long term
development statement (published in accordance with Special Condition D3 of the Gas Transporter~
Licences) and available on the Company’s website - www.sgn.co.uk. The long-term development plans
set out the forecast gas demand over the ten year period and outlines the capital investment plan that
is required to ensure the continued operation of the network in accordance with the Company s licence
conditions. :

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

4%\/

Gregor Alexander
Chairman

18 July 2018
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Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2018

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018. '

Principal activities

The Company’s principal activity is the development, administration, maintenance and operation of
the South and South East of England gas distribution system and the supply of gas transportation
services. It will continue in this activity for the foreseeable future.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who served throughout the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the
date of signing are listed below:

Gregor Alexander (Chairman)

Robert McDonald

Guy Lambert

Andrew Jonathan Mark Taylor

Natalie Flageul

John McManus

Neil Fleming (resigned 2 May 2018)
Alejandro Lopez Delgado

Graham Juggins

Paul Jeffery

Kenton Edward Bradbury

Charles Thomazi (appointed 27 October 2017)
Charlotte Brunning (appointed 2 May 2018)
Mariana Popa (appointed 15 May 2018)

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

The Directors of the Company have the benefit of the indemnity provisions in the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Directors have been granted a qualifying third-party indemnity provision which was
in force throughout the year. In addition, SGN has purchased and maintained throughout the year
Directors' and officers’ liability insurance in respect of itself, the Group, the Directors and other senior
executives of the Group. '

Review of business

The review of business for the year, including an analysis using key performance indicators, together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are set out in the strategic
report on pages 2t0 9.

Future developments

Details of future developments can be found in the strategic report on pages 2 to 9.

Results and dividends

The profit and loss account is set out on page 26, and is reviewed on page 7. The Company paid an
interim dividend of £1,046.5m of which £117.0m is a cash dividend (2017: £135.0m). The remaining
£929.5m of the dividend in the year is due to the repayment of amounts owed from the Company's
parent, Scotia Gas Networks Ltd, the dividends have been offset against the historic intercompany -
balance. The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year (2017: £nil).

10
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Financial risk management

The Company’s funding, liquidity and exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange risks are
managed within a framework of policies and guidelines authorised by the Board of Directors.

o

Interest rate risk

The Company has interest bearing liabilities, and as a matter of policy a minimum of 75% of debt is
maintained at either fixed rates of interest or index linked. This policy is kept under review from time
to time. The Company uses interest rate swaps, where necessary, in order to achieve this desired
profile.

Liquidity risk
The Company maintains a mixture of long term funding and short term liquid funds in order to ensure
that there are sufficient funds available for the Company’s current and planned operations.

Foreign exchange risk

All of the Company’s borrowings are currently denominated in Pound Sterling, so there is no foreign
exchange risk. However, in accordance with its policy, should the Group decide to raise finance in
currency other than Pound Sterling, cross currency swaps would be used to fully hedge the borrowings
into Pound Sterling. .

Credit risk

The Company transacts with banks for the provision of interest rate and currency hedging transactions.

The Company takes reasonable steps to maintain a minimum credit rating requirement as set out in

its hedging policy; however, it recognises that at times the market conditions for banks can be

unusualiy tight. In respect of short term cash management, counterparties are subject to review and
. approval according to defined criteria.

Trade receivables predominantly relate to transportation income from gas shippers. Credit risk arising
from the Group’s regulated business is managed in accordance with industry standards as set out by
the Unified Network Code. The Group contracts with shippers having investment grade ratings only,
or where suitable collateral or cash prepayments are made. Credit risk on amounts receivable from
other Group companies is considered minimal.

Pricing risk

The Company's gas transportation charges are subject to price control formulae set within the
regulatory regime. The Company’s maximum allowed revenue in a given price period is dependent
upon a number of factors that are not known in advance and therefore the maximum allowed annual
revenue is not known until the end of the relevant period. However, transportation tariffs are set on a
prospective basis based upon expected transportation volumes, so actual revenue received or
receivable in any one year may differ from the maximum allowed revenue. Where revenues received
or receivable differ from the maximum allowed annual revenue, adjustments are made to future prices
to reflect this over or under recovery. '

Employees

The Company places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to
keep them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the
Company. Participation by employees generally is encouraged through team meetings, briefings, an
internal newspaper and an intranet site. Employee representatives are consulted regularly on a wide .
range of matters affecting their current and future interests.

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the
aptitudes of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort
is made to ensure their employment within the Company continues and that appropriate training and
development is arranged. It is the policy of the Company that the training, career development and
promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees. -

1"
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Gomg concern

The Company’s financial position, césh flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities together with the
~ factors likely to affect its future performance and the principal risks and uncertainties are set out in the
strategic report on pages 2 to 9. The financial risk management objectives and risk exposures are set
out above.

As stated in the strategic report the Company operates the regulated gas distribution networks in the
South and South East of England. The revenue of the Company is regulated by Ofgem via established
price control mechanisms. The Company has considerable financial resources together with committed
financing facilities to finance the current and future operations. The Company's forecasts and
projections, including performing scenario testing and sensitivity analysis, show that the Company
should be able to operate within the level of its current facilities. As a consequence, the Directors believe
that the Company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the current uncertain
economic outlook. After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial
statements. '

Environment and Carbon Reporting

During 2017 and into 2018, our main challenge was to implement an improved Environment and
Sustainability strategy. We recognised that we need to make changes if we are to reduce our
environmental impact further and we are looking at ways we can achleve this by broadening our
Sustainability Strategy.

We continue to hold 1ISO14001 accreditation and have also been recertified for the Carbon Trust -
standard where we have showed a year on year reduction in our total footprint.

We are now five years into our ‘Greenplan’, which began in 2013-14. Its five goals are underpinned
by nine targets, which are monitored and communicated monthly. At the end of year five we have
been able to meet seven of our nine targets.

We have made reductions in natural gas shrinkage,energy usage at operational sites, spoil and
waste to landfill and reduced our reliance on virgin aggregate.

Reducing natural gas shrinkage

Natural gas shrinkage is a major part of our busines carbon footprint and accounts for 95.9% of the
total. Shrinkage is made up of leakage from the network, own use of gas and theft of gas. In this
area, we have achieved a 2.9% reduction in natural gas shrinkage since last year (2016/17),
equating to 18,203 tonnes of CO2 equivalent.

We have achieved this through the following areas:

¢ Decommissioning and planned deconstruction of gas holders
Mains replacement programme

Robotics and pressure management trials and roll outs

Line search before you dig (LSBUD) project

Hydrogen blending project

12
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Greenplan five year benefits

Each year we report to Ofgem on business carbon footprint, volume and percentage of excavated
spoil which reaches landfill and the volume and percentage of total reinstatement material that is
made up of virgin material. Our internal Greenplan goals mirror these same areas.

Since 2012/13 we have reduced our: ) )

e Scope 1 & 2 carbon emissions (those over which we have direct control) by 25.4%
e Percentage of excavated spoil reaching landfill from 2.00% to 0.05%
'« Percentage of reinstatement material containing virgin aggregate from 3.37% to 1.44%

We are currently achieving 0.24% office/ depot waste to landfill and have nearly achieved our zero
spoil to landfill target.

Annual Movement

2017118 2016/17
Decreasel/(increase)
. Tonnes of Tonnes of Tonnes of -
Tonnes of Tonnes of Tonnes of
c £1 c co £1
COze Otzerr"n,::er " COze £1 quen’::\rler COze t:;v‘::\rler "
Scope 1 A
Energy consumption (excluding
electricity) 210 0.28 221 . 0.29 ‘ 11 0.01
Transport (direct commercial vehicles
and business miles) 9,727 13.04 10,512 13.87 785 0.83
Scope 2
Electricity consumption 2,214 2.97 2,633 3.47 419 0.51
Scope 3
Rail, air and ferry travel 13,981 18.74 12,731 16.80 -1,250 (1.94)
Total (excluding shrinkage) 26,132 35.02 26,097 34.43 -35} (0.60)
Shrinkage 608,104 815.04 626,307 826.26 18,203 11.22
Total carbon emissions 634,236 850.07 652,404 860.69 18,168 10.62

*2016/17 shrinkage figure has been updated due to corrected conversion procesé

Data has not been independently verified
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Southern Gas Networks pic
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

Auditor
The auditors for the year 31 March 2018 were newly appointed as KPMG.
Each of the Directors at the date of this report confirms that:

1) So far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor
is unaware; and :

2)' The Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is
aware of that information. ‘

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provision of section 418 of
the Companies Act 2006. ‘

y Order of the Board

Nicola Shand
Company Secretary

18 July 2018
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Southern Gas Networks plc
Corporate governance statement

The Board of Directors is the principal decision making forum for the Company and is committed to the
highest standards of corporate governance. The Board believes that strong governance improves the
performance of the Company and enhances shareholder value. This report sets out the key governance
principles and practices of the Company.

The Company, not having listed equity shares, is not subject to the UK Financial Reporting Council’'s
UK Corporate Governance Code' (the “Governance Code”), and the Board of Directors has decided
not to voluntarily apply the Governance Code as they do not consider all the guidance to be-applicable
to the Company. However, for the purposes of this statement, the Directors have elected to provide
additional disclosure in relation to governance to provide a clearer understanding of the Company.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is comprised entirely of non-executive Directors and is the principal decision-
making forum for the Company. Directors are nominated to the Board in accordance with the terms of
the Shareholders’ and Governance Agreement.

-The Board is collectively responsible to the Company's shareholders for the long-term success of the
Company and for its overall strategic direction, its values and its governance. It provides the leadership
necessary for the Company to meet its business objectives whilst ensuring that a sound system of
internal control and risk management is in place.

The powers and the duties of the Directors are determined by legislation and by the Company's Articles
of Association. The Board has also adopted a formal schedule of matters detailing key aspects of the
Company’s affairs reserved to it for decision. Furthermore, the Board has established four standing
committees and one non-standing committee with specific responsibilities to ensure focused and
effective leadership. Details of the committees are set out below.

The Board meets regularly and has held eight meetings during the year.

Board Constitution and Appointments

The Board of Directors consists of seven non-executive Directors in addition to the non-executive
Chairman, as well as two additional independent non-executive Directors.

The non-executive Directors scrutinise, measure and review the performance of management;
constructively challenge and assist in the development of strategy; review the Company financial
information and ensure systems of internal control and risk management are appropriate and effective.

Biographical details for each of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 20.

Chairman

Gregor Alexander was re-appointed as Chairman on 24 July 2014.

' The UK Corporate Governance Code was issued in April 2016 (replacing the Combined Code on Corporate Governance),
applies to.financial years beginning on or aﬂer 17 June 2016 and is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website

(www.frc.org.uk).
i
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Southern Gas Networks plc
Corporate governance statement (continued)

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Below the Board, executive responsibility rests with John Morea, Chief Executive Officer (‘CEO”) and
Mick Carmedy, Chief Financial Officer (‘CFQ"). They are supported by an executive committee which
meets on a monthly basis and is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of the Company.

Biographical details for the CEO and CFO are set out on page 20.

Timeliness and quality of Board information

The Board has sought to ensure that Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings
by establishing procedures for distributing board papers one week in advance of meetings; considering
the adequacy of the information provided before making decisions; adjourning meetings or deferring
decisions when Directors have concerns about the information available to them and making the
Company Secretary responsible to the Board for the timeliness and quality of information.

_ Al Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.

Conflicts of interest

With effect from 1 October 2008, the Companies Act 2006 has introduced a statutory duty on Directors
to avoid conflicts of interest. During the year, the Company Secretary reviewed all of the Directors’
reported actual and potential conflicts of interest and the Board then considered and recorded each
Director’s reported actual and potential conflicts of interest.

The Board has put into place a procedure to consider any future actual or potential conflicté of interest .
that the Directors may have and will review the position regularly.

Board Committees

In order to provide effective and focused leadership, the Board has established four standing committees
and one non- standing committee with specific responsibilities. These are the Audit Committee, the
People and Reward Committee, the Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee and the
GD2 Committee (standing) and the Finance Committee (non-standing).

Each Committee’s performance, constitution and terms of reference are reviewed annually to ensure
that they are operating effectively. The Company Secretary acts as secretary for each committee and
further details are set out below.

Audit Committee

- The current members of the Audit Committee are John McManus (Committee Chairman), Paul Jeffery
(replacing Graham Laughland in May 2018), Gregor Alexander, Charlotte Brunning (replacing Neil
Fleming in May 2018) and Guy Lambert. :

“The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:-

e Ensuring that the Company's financial reports represent an accurate, clear and balanced
assessment of the Company’s position and prospects;,

e Ensuring the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the Company’s operations and internal
controls, the reliability and integrity of information and accounting systems, and the implementation
of established policies and procedures;

e Monitoring and reviewing the Company’s internal audit function; and

¢ Maintaining a close relationship with the Company’s external auditor and reviewing the effectiveness
of the external audit process.
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Southern Gas Networks plc
Corporate governance statement (continued)

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors following each committee
meeting on the main areas and subjects the Committee has reviewed such as risk management, internal
control, internal audit reports and any issues arising from its review of the financial statements.

The Board considers that the membership of the Audit Committee as a whole has sufficient recent and
relevant financial experience to discharge its functions. The Committee met three times during the year.

Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee

The current members of the Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee are Natalie Flageul
(Committee Chair), Andrew Jonathan Mark Taylor, Graham Juggins, Alejandro Lopez Delgado, John
Morea (Chief Executive Officer) and Paul Denniff (Director of Network and Safety).

The principal responsibilities of the Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee are as
follows: '

o Ensuring that the health and safety policy statement and environmental policy statement remain fit
for purpose and are being adhered to;

e Reviewing and monitoring the safety, health and environmental strategy and action plan, which
shall be designed to eliminate, reduce or otherwise control personal and process related data;

¢ Reviewing and monitoring the safety, health and environmental compliance and assurance plan
(and liaising with the internal auditors in relation thereto),

e Setting health and safety, and environmental targets to improve the Company’s performance;

¢ Monitoring health and safety and environmental performance against planned targets and identified
key improvement areas by means of appropriate leading and lagging key performance indicators;
and

e Encouraging greater awareness of the importance of health, safety and the environment and higher
achievement in performance in these areas.

The Chairman of the Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee reports to the Board of
Directors following each committee meeting on the main areas and subjects the Committee has
reviewed. Three meetings were held during the year.

People and Reward Committee

The current members of the People and Reward Committee are Andrew Jonathan Mark Taylor
(Committee Chairman), John McManus and Gregor Alexander.

The principal responsibilities of the People and Reward Committee are as follows:

e To determine and agree with the Board of Directors the Company's framework or broad policy for
executive and senior management remuneration. The Committee has delegated authority for setting
the remuneration of the CEO, CFO and their direct reports; and

e To review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy.

The Chair of the People and Reward Committee reports to the Board of Directors following each
Committee meeting on the remuneration matters which the Committee has reviewed. Four meetings
were held during the year. ’
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Southern Gas Networks plc
Corporate goVernance statement (continued)

Finance Committee
The current members of the Finance Committee are Charlotte Brunning (replacing Neil Fleming in May
2018), Guy Lambert, Gregor Alexander and Alejandro Lopez Delgado.

The principal responsibility of the Finance Committee is to authorise specific transactions of the
Company where it has been provided delegated authority by the Board of Directors to do so. The
members of the Finance Committee report to the Board of Directors following each Committee meeting
on the matters which the Committee has reviewed. Four meetings were held during the year.

GD2 Committee ' A i
The current members of the GD2 Committee are Rob McDonald (Committee Chairman), Charlotte
Brunning {replacing Neil Fleming in May 2018), Mariana Popa and Alejandro Lopez Delgado.

The primary responsibility of the GD2 Board Committee is to provide leadership and challenge on the
RIIO-2 process and business plan that will be developed for the RIIO-2 period that will enter into force
from Aprii 2021. The Committee is a leadership and’ challenge group, with recommendations to be
reported back to the board of directors. The committee meets alongside the main board with additional
meetings as necessary.

Board and Committee Performance Evaluations

During the year, the Board has undertaken a comprehensive evaluation of its own performance and that
of its five Committees and individual Directors. This was conducted internally using detailed
questionnaires which the Chairman then discussed with each Director and the Company Secretary. The
Board has considered and discussed the outcomes of the evaluations and is satisfied that it is operating
well and focused on the correct strategic issues. The Directors continue to review the Board's
performance and that of its five Committees and individual Directors on an annual basis.

Attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings

The attendance of the Board of Directors and the Board Committees during the year is as set out below.
) Safety, Health

Peopl d
Audit opiean and Finance GD2
Board . Reward . . .
) Committee . Environment Committee Committee
meetings } Commiittee . A ) .
meetings L Committee meetings meetings
meetings .
. meetings
Attended Possible Attended Possible Attended Attended Possible Possible Attended Possible Attended Possible

Gregor Alexander 8 8 3 3 4 3 4 4 - - - .
Robert McDonald 7 8 2 2 - . - - - - 6 6
Natalie Flageul 8 8 - - - - . - 3 3 - -
John McManus 6 8 3 3 4 - - 4 - - - -
Alejandro Lopez 8 8 - - - 4 4 - 3 3 6 6
Delgado
Neil Fleming™ 7 8 3 3 4 4 1 - - 6 6
Andrew Jonathan 8 - - 3 - - 4 2 3 R -
Mark Taylor
Guy Lambert 7 8 3 3 - 3 4 - 2 3 - -
Paul Jeffery*** 7 8 - - - 2 - - - - -
Graham Juggins 8 8 - - - - - - 3 3 - -
Charles Thomazi* 3 3 - - - - - - - - - -
Kenton Bradbury* 2 2 - - - - - - - - - -
Graham Laughland n/a n/a 2 3 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Mariana Popa . nla n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 6 6

* Attended as Alternate Directors on behalf of members from Borealis Infrastructure and Teachers' infrastructure Group. .
** Attended as an Alternate Director in place of Jo Taylor for a People and Reward Committee Meeting in 2017.
*** Paul Jeffery became a member of the Finance Committee after the May 2017 Committee meetings.
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Southern Gas Networks plc
Corporate governance statement (continued)

Internal Controls in relation to the Company’s financial reporting process

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the Company’s internal control systems and risk
management. The Company's system of internal control and embedded risk management, which has
been in place throughout the year, helps to safeguard the assets and is designed to manage, rather
than eliminate, material risks to the achievement of the business objectives. The Board recognises that
these systems can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss. ‘

Accordingly, the Directors have regard to what controls, in their judgement, are appropriate to the
business, to the materiality of the risks inherent in the business, and to relative costs and benefits of
implementing specific controls. :

Internal control is maintained through an organisation structure with clearly defined responsibilities,
authority levels and lines of reporting, the appointment of suitably qualified staff in specialised business
areas, and continuing investment in high quality information systems. These methods of control are
subject to periodic review as to their implementation and continued suitability.

There were no' changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the year
covered by this report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company'’s internal control over financial reporting.

Internal audit

The Board of Directors has established the scope of the internal audit function which is responsible for
reviewing. the effectiveness of the Company’'s systems of internal control and reports to the Audit
Committee of the Board. The internal audit manager reports to the Audit Committee on the audit
programme, progress against the programme and any follow-up actions on a bi-monthly basis.

Directors’ and Senior Executives’ Biographies and Responsibilities as at 31 March 2018 '

Gregor Alexander, Chairman

Gregor joined the Board of the Company at its inception and was appointed Chairman in July 2011. He
is Finance Director of SSE plc and previously worked with the accountancy firm Arthur Andersen. He is
a member of the Audit Committee, the People and Reward Committee, and the Finance Committee.

Robert McDonald, Director

Robert joined the Board of the Company in July 2006. He is Managing Director, Corporate and Business
Services at SSE plc and has previously worked with the industry’s regulatory body. Rob is the Chairman
of the GD2 Committee.

.Alejandro Lopez Delgado, Director

Alejandro joined the Board in November 2015. He is a Director at Borealis Infrastructure, where he is
responsible for the origination, acquisition and management of infrastructure investments, with a focus
in Europe. He is a member of the Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee and the Finance
Committee and the GD2 Committee.

Andrew Jonathan Mark Taylor, Director

Jo joined the Board in May 2016. He is Regional Managing Director, EMEA, overseeing the full cycle of
origination, analysis, execution, value creation and eventual realization of private investments in EMEA.
Jo is the Chairman of the Peopie and Reward Committee and a member of the Safety, Health and
Environmental Advisory Committee.

John McManus, Director

John joined the Board of the Company in March 2012. He is Senior Advisor to OMERS Private Markets
and the Borealis leadership team in infrastructure asset management, assessment of investment
opportunities, relationship development and mentorship. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the People and Reward Committee.
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Corporate governance statement (continued)

Natalie Flageul, Director

Natalie joined the Board of the Company in September 2011. She is Director of Customer Experience
at SSE plc and previously oversaw the transformation to nationwide coverage in preparation for Smart
Meter deployment. She is the Chair of Safety, Health and Environmental Advisory Committee.

Neil Fleming, Director

Neil joined the Board in March 2015 and is a Senior Principal in Teachers’ Infrastructure Group. He is
active in the regulated utilities and transportation sectors in Europe. He is a member of Audit Committee,
and the Finance Committee. Neil resigned in May 2018 and was replaced by Charlotte Brunning.

Guy Lambert, Director

Guy joined the Board in October 2016. He joined the Abu Dhabi Investment Authority (ADIA) in 2008
“and currently serves as the Head of Utilities. He is responsible for sourcing and executing new
investments in the utilities sector and overseeing the existing utilities portfolio. Guy is a member of the
Audit Committee and the Finance Committee.

Kenton Edward Bradbury, Alternate Director

Kenton joined the board in May 2016. He is a managing director in asset management at Borealis
and is responsible for the active management of infrastructure investments, with a focus on Europe.
Kenton was appointed as an alternate director. He attends board meetings as a substitute for
members of Borealis Infrastructure.

Charles Thomazi, Alternate Director

Charles joined the board in October 2017. He leads the Europe, Middle East and Africa Infrastructure
team in Teachers’ Infrastructure Group. He has more than 25 years of experience in the financial
services sector and has been actively involved in infrastructure since 2001. He attends board meetings
as a substitute for members of Teachers’ Infrastructure Group.

Graham Juggins, Director

Graham joined the Board as an independent non-executive Director in January 2014. He is an electrical
engineer and has 38 years of experience in the energy and construction industries holding senior posts,
which include Director of Human Resources at SSE plc. He is a member of the Safety, Health and
Environmental Advisory Committee.

Paul Jeffery, Director

Paul joined the Board as an independent non-executive Director in January 2014. Previously he ran the
European Power, Utility and Infrastructure Investment Banking Sector team for Barclays. Paul is also a
non - executive Director of UK Power Networks and Seata YleId S.A. He is a member of the Audit
Committee and Finance Committee.

John Morea, Chief Executive Officer

John joined the Company in May 2005 from SSE plc. He has over 20 years’ experience within the utilities
industry. John is a companion of the Institute of Gas Engineers and Managers, a member of the Institute
of Engineering and Technology and holds an MBA.

Mick Carmedy, Chief Financial Officer

Mick joined the Company in January 2018. Mick was CFO of Southern Water, the regulated water
business, for five years prior to joining. Mick has also worked at United Utilities Water and Thames Water
in a wide variety of roles.

Nicola Shand, Company Secretary

Nicola joined the Board as Company Secretary in July 2011. She is the Company Secretary and Director
of Legal and Compliance and is responsible to the Board for compliance with Board procedures and for
advising and keeping the Board up to date on all corporate governance developments.
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Southern Gas Networks plc
Directors Responsibilities Statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law they are required to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards
and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), mcludmg FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of its profit or loss for that
period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reIiab!e'

e assess the Company’'s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appllcable matters
related to going concern; and

e use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the d:rectors are also responsnble for preparing a Strategic
. Report, Directors’ Report, and Corporate Governance Statement that complies with that law and those
regulations.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annual financial report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standardé,
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

e the directors’ report includes a fair review of the de\/elopment and performance of the business
and the position of the issuer, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
. that they face.

/g%

Gregor Alexander
Chairman
18 July 2018
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 Southern Gas Networks plc
Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Southern Gas Networks plc

1 Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Southern Gas Networks plc (“the Company”) for the year
ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Balance sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and the related notes, inciuding
the accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion:
o the financlal statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31
March 2018 and of the Company'’s profit for the year then ended,;
+ have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland, and
e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006. )

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law.. Our responsibilities are described below. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion is consistent with our
report to the audit committee.

We were appointed as auditor by the directors on 18 July 2017. We have fulfiled our ethical
responsibilities under, and we remain independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities. No non-audit
services prohibited by that standard were provided.

2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit, and directing the efforts of the. engagement team.
We summarise below the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our
audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for
public interest entities, our results from those procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results
are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to
that opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Therisk Our response
Retirement The Company operates a defined benefit pension | Our procedures included:
beb:!eﬁ:_ tsr::he(':me. Slgnylﬁcant gsum:tlfas ?re made in valuing - Benchmarking Assumptions: With
obligation e Lompany's pension obligation. the assistance of our own actuarial
(£504.2m) specialists, we challenged ~ key
Small changes in the assumptions and estimates a;sumptions applied,. including
used to value the Company’s pension obligation discount rate and inflation rate, and
Refer to page : i
pag (before deducting scheme assets), including in performe_d a comparison of key
32 . . ) . assumptions against market data.
(accounting particular the discount rate, the inflation .
policy)  and assumptions, the cash commutation assumptions - Assessing actuaries’ credentials:
page 53 and mortality assumptions, would have a We assessed . the_ competence,
. significant effect on the financial position of the independence and integrity of the
{financial Company's actuarial expert.
disclosures). Company.
- Assessing transparency: We have
considered the adequacy of the
Company'’s disclosures in respect of
the sensitivity of the obligation to key
assumptions.
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Alndependent auditor’s report to the members of
Southern Gas Networks plc (continued)

2 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement (continued)

The risk

Our response’

Cost
classification
between
Capex, Repex
and Opex

(£266.6m plant
and machinery
additions)

Refer to page
31 (accounting
policy) and
page 44
(financial
disclosures).

Costs are classified between capital
expenditure, replacement expenditure,
and operating expenditure.

Specifically for the plant and machinery
asset category, given the size and
nature of expenditure within the
business, judgement is required to
ensure appropriate allocation of costs -
between capital, replacement and
operating expenditure. There is a risk
that the allocation around classification
of these costs is incorrect, with
expenditure misstated between the profit
and loss account and balance sheet.
The incentive to capitalise more costs to
increase profit exists, though the
incentive for management bias is
reduced because of the Totex regime
within GD-1 that SGN operates under.

Our procedures included:

Control design and operation: We evaluated the
controls around lhe authorlsatlon of capital and
replacement expenditure, including their operating
effectiveness. We evaluated general IT control
including access controls to ensure that the ability to
make changes to system configuration and project
classification was restricted to appropriate individuals.
Accounting analysis: We assessed whether the
Company's accounting policies for capitalisation are in
accordance with relevant accounting standards,
including the capitalisation criteria.

Tests of details: We assessed the appropriateness of
the cost classification for a sample of projects, including
by inspecting supporting documentation, such as
approved budget reports completed for each project, to
gain an understanding of the nature and type of costs
incurred and assess this against the criteria for
capitalisation or expensing.

Environmental

The Company has an environmental

Our procedures included:

provisions restoration provision to cover the legal Assessing environmental expert’s credentials: We
(£22.6m) obligation to restore sites at the balance assessed the competence, independence and integrity
sheet date, which is reassessed through | of the Company's environmental expert.
Refer to page |an ongoing programme of expert
34 (accounting | assessment. Benchmarking assumptions: We assessed the
policy) and In assessing the degree of contamination | reasonableness of management’s discount rate
page 50 at the various sites, estimation is required | assumptions by comparing this to the risk free inflation
(financial where elements of the contamination are | rate set by Ofgem and long term inflation rates.
disclosures). underground, resulting in estimation .
uncertainty around the extent of the Sensitivity analysis: We performed sensitivity analysis
contamination. on the discount rate to consider the impact of the
For those sites which have not yet been change in the assumption.
reviewed, the provision is based on
management's best estimate using Test of details: We vouched assessments completed
existing information about those sites. in the year to supporting documentation including
The assessment required is inherently valuation reports.
judgemental, and there is a risk the . ‘
actual costs of restoration are materially Management enquiry: We challenged the
different to the amounts provided. completeness of the provision through enquiries of
management based on our understanding of business
activity during the year, comparison to sites in the prior
year and our review of third party valuation reports.
Financial The Company'’s derivatives portfolio Our procedures included:
Instruments includes mirror swaps, and it has
cashflow hedges in place to manage Test of details: For 100% of the portfolio of
interest and currency exposures. instruments, we agreed the year end swap valuation to
(£43.1m) o . third-party mark to market (MTM’) confirmations.
The derivatives are recognised at fair
Refer to page | Value. Due to the uncertainties in forward | |ndependent re-performance: We engaged our
34 (accounting | Yield curves used in discounted cash valuation specialists to recalculate 100% of the year
policy) and flow calculations, there is a significant end derivative valuations and the credit risk adjustment
page 48 risk of error in the valuation of these using independent sourced market data.
(financial - financial instruments. :
disclosures).
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Southern Gas Networks plc (continued)

- 3 Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the statutory financial statements as a whole was set at £9.8 million, determined with
reference to a benchmark of profit before tax of £197.8 million, of which it represents 5%.

We reported to management any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £490,000,
in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

The audit was performed using the materiality levels set out above, covering 100% of the profit before
taxation and totat assets heid.

4 We have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
over the use of that basis for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements. We have nothing to report in these respects.

5 We have nothing to report on the other information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report together with the
financial statements. Our. opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of '
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Strategic report and directors’ report

Based solely on our work on the other information:

¢ we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

e in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the
financial statements; and

» in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Corporate governance disclosures
Based solely on our work on the other information described above:
e with respect to the Corporate Governance Statement disclosures about internal control and risk
management systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about share capital structures:
¢ we have not identified material misstatements therein; and
the information therein is consistent with the financial statements; and
in our opinion, the Corporate Governance Statement has been prepared in accordance with relevant
rules of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority.

We are also required to report to you if a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by the
Company. We have nothing to report in these respects.

6 We have nothing to report on the other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

o the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

Southern Gas Networks plc (continued)
7 Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities ‘ '

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 21, the Directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or other irregularities (see below), or error, and
to issue our opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does
not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud, other irregularities or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at -
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Irregularities — ability to detect

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect
on the financial statements from our sector experience, through discussion with the directors and other
management (as required by auditing standards).

We had regard to laws and regulations in areas that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting (including related company legislation) and taxation legislation. We considered the
extent of compliance with those laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial
statement items.

in addition we considered the impact of laws and regulations in the specific areas of utilities regulation
recognising the nature of the Company’s activities. With the exception of any known or possible non-
compliance, and as required by auditing standards, our work in respect of these was limited to enquiry of
the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence. We
considered the effect of any known or possible non-compliance in these areas as part of our procedures
on the related financial statement items.

We communicated identified laws and regulatlons throughout our team and remained alert to any
indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

As with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations, as these may involve collusion, forgery, |ntent|onal omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal controls.

8 The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

[ =

lan Griffiths (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and-on behaif of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

18 July 2018
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Southern Gas Networks plc
Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017
£m £m

Notes
Turnover ' -3 746.1 758.0
Net operating costs 3 | (429.9) (408.3)
Operating profit 3 316.2 349.7
Interest receivable and similar income 4 44 54
interest payable and similar charges 5 (122.8) (111.4)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 6 -+ 197.8 243.7
Tax (charge)/credit on profit on ordinary activities 8 (38.5) 3.1)
| 240.6

Profit for the financial year : 18 159.3

The above results relate to continuing operations in both the current and previous year.

The notes on pages 31 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.

26



- Southern Gas Networks plc
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2018

2018 2017

Notes £m £m

Profit for the financial year _ 18 169.3 240.6
Cash flow hedges:

- Gains arising on cash flow hedges ) 18 0.8 0.7
Remeasurement of net defined benefit asset 20 106.2 (38.9)
Deferred tax movement relating to components of other .
comprehensive income:

- Pension asset 18 (18.0) 6.2
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ' 89.0 (32.0)
Total comprehensive income 248.3 208.6

The notes on pages 31 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.

27



~ Southern Gas Networks plc | o ', .
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2018 :

2018 2017 .
£m £m
Notes .
Fixed assets . . ‘
Intangible assets , . 10 - 250.4 258.5
Tangible assets | 11 4,236.4  4,068.0
Investments - _ 12 0.2 02
o , 4,487.0 4,326.7
A Current‘assets :
Debtors ' , " 13 743 968.5
Short term deposits - 266.4 -
Cash at bank and in hand ‘ - 10.3 7.0
) 351.0 -975.5
Creditors: amounts falling due within one.year 14 (624.0) (212.2)
Net currerit (liabilities)/assets : ' . . (273.0) 763.3
Total assets less current liabilities ‘ 4,214.0 5,090.0
Creditors: amounts falling due after more. than one year 15 (2,675.3) (2,668.6)
Provisions for liabilities - ' 16 .- (559.7) (542.8)
Deferred income 1 (198.8) (186.7)
-Net assets excluding pension asset ' ' 780.2 1,691.9
Defined benefit pension asset 20 - 116.4 209
Net assets ' 896.6 1,694.8
Capital and reserves o
Called up share capital 18 " 160.2 160.2
'Hedge reserve ' 18 08) . (16)
Profit-and loss account 4 . 18 737.2°  1,536.2

Shareholder's funds , ‘ 896.6 1,694.8
The notes on pages 31 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements of Southern Gas Networks plc, registered number 05167021 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 18 July 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

}m

Gregor Alexander
Chairman
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~ Southern Gas Networks pic

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes Ca"gggl:g r:::rg/z proft I?)gg Total 4
capital account
£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2016 160.2 (2.3) 1,463.3 1,621.2
Profit for the financial year - - 2406 240.6
Cash flow hedges - 0.7 - 0.7
S:r:t;ﬁ)ans:;esr:tent of net defined ber.weflt 20 ) ) (38.9) (38.9)
Deferred tax movements relating to items of
other comprehensive income:
- Cash flow hedges - - - -
- Pension asset - - 6.2 6.2
Total comprehensive income - 0.7 207.9 208.6
Dividends paid 9 - . (1350)  (135.0)
At 31 March 2017 160.2 (1.6) 1,536.2 1,694.8
Profit for the financial year 18 - - 159.3 159.3
Cash flow hedges 18 - 0.8 - 0.8
AE:I:T:Oans:rsir:tent of n\et defined benefit 20 ) ) 106.2 | 106.2
Deferred tax movements relating to .items of
other comprehensive income;
- Cash flow hedges 18 - - - -
- Pension asset - - (18.0) (18.0)
Total comprehensive income - 0.8 2475 248.3
Dividends paid 9 - - (1,046.5) (1,046.5)
At 31 March 2018 160.2 (0.8) 737.2 896.6

The notes on pages 31 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Southern Gas Networks plc

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 Marc_h 2018

Cash and cash equivalents

The notes on pages 31 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.

2018 2017
£m £m
Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit 316.2 349.7
Depreciation charge and software amortisation 113.8 1121
Goodwill amortisation 5.8 57
Amortisation of deferred income (4.6) (4.2)
(Profit)/loss on disposal 6f fixed assets 13 49
(Increase)/decrease in debtors 913.6 (31.0)
Decrease in creditors (5.4) (7.5)
Increase/(decrease) in provision 4.8 (1.5)
Cash generated by operations 1,345.5 428.2
Taxation (56.6) (44.7)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,288.9 383.5

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 01 -
Purchase of fixed assets (283.3) (260.7)
. Sale of fixed assets 4.6 45
Customer contributions received 16.7 18.0.
Net cash outflow from investing activities (261.9) (238.2)

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (100.8) (101.5)
Dividends paid 9 (1,046.5) (135.0)
Issue of debt 400.0 95.0
Payments in respect of financial instruments (7.0) (1.6)
Decrease in short term deposits (266.5) -
Net cash outflow from financing activities (1,020.8) (143.1)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6.2 2.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4.1 1.9
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10.3 4.1

Reconciliation to cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand 10.3 7.0
Bank overdraft - 2.9)
10.3 41
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Southern Gas Networks plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year endéd 31 March
2018

1 Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summarlsed below. They have all been applied consistently
throughout the year.

a. General information and basis of preparation -~

Southern Gas Networks Plc is a private limited Company incorporated in the United Kingdom under
the Companies Act 2006. The address of the registered office is St Lawrence House, Station
Approach, Horley, Surrey, RH6 9HJ. The Company’s principal activity is the development,
administration,; maintenance and operation of the South and South East of England gas distribution
system and the supply of gas transportation services.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to
include certain items at fair value, and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 — 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland' (FRS 102)
issued by the Financial Reporting Council. There were no material departures from that standard.

The functional currency of Southern Gas Networks Plc is considered to be pounds stérling because
that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. Amounts
are expressed in millions of pounds except where noted otherwise.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of SGN MidCo Limited. The ultimate parent undertaking
is Scotia Gas Networks Limited and the financial statements of the Company are included in the
consolidated financial statements of Scotia Gas Networks Limited which can be obtained from the
address above. Consequently, the Company has taken exemptions available under FRS 102 in
relation to financial instruments, presentation of a cash flow statement, intra-group transactions and
remuneration of key management personnel.

b. Going concern

After-reviewing the Company's forecasts and projections, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. The current liabilities position has arisen due to £400m of debt repayments falling
due in 2018/19, new finance will be raised in the coming financial year to meet these repayments.
The Directors do not foresee any reason why these funds will not be raised to meet existing liabilities
due to the Company’s good standing in the debt capital markets. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual financial statements. See also director’s
report for discussion on going concern.

c. Intangible assets — goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of businesses, representing any excess of the fair value of the
consideration given over the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, is capitalised
and written off on a straight line basis over its useful economic life, which is estimated to be 50
years. Provision is made for any impairment, and it is tested on an annual basis at each balance
sheet date. )

d. Intangible assets — software
Software assets are included at cost, net of amortisation and any provision for impairment.

Amortisation is provided in equal annual instaiments over a period of 3 to 10 years, which is their
estimated useful economic life. :

)
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Southern Gas Networks plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018 | '

1  Significant accounting policies (co'ntinued)

e. Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. in
accordance with Ofgem guidance for gas transportation licensees, costs include an element of
capitalised overheads which are, as far as reasonably practicable, allocated in accordance with the
activities which lead to the generation of the assets. These costs are directly attributable to the
associated assets. Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land, at
rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a
straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold buildings: Up to 50 years
Leasehold land and buildings: - Over the shorter of lease term and 50 years
Plant and machinery:

-Mains and services: 55 to 65 years

-Regulating equipment: 30 to 50 years

-Gas storage:. 40 years

-Motor vehicles and office equipment: 3 to 10 years

Site remediation costs are depreciated over the life of the asset.

Replacement expenditure is capitalised within mains and services and depreciated accordingly
above.

Residual value represents the estimated amount which would currently be obtained from disposal of
an asset, after deducting estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were aiready of the age and in the
condition expected at the end of its useful life.

f. Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less a provision for any impairment in value. Costs of the
investments include all costs directly related to the acquisition of the investments.

g. Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets, other than those measured at fair value, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss as described below.

An asset is impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
~occurred after initial recognition, the estimated recoverable value of the asset has been reduced. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

The recoverable amount of goodwill is derived from measurement of the present value of the future
cash flows of the business. Any impairment loss is allocated first to the goodwill, and then to other
assets on a pro-rata basis. The Company considers there to be no one CGU for the purpose of
goodwill impairment.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, the prior impairment loss is tested to
determine reversal. An impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired asset to the extent that
the revised recoverable value does not lead to a revised carrying amount higher than the carrying
value had no impairment been recognised. Where a reversal of impairment occurs, the reversal is
applied to the assets (other than goodwill) on a pro-rata basis. Goodwill impairment is not reversed.

h. Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid
(or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at

the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in
the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.
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Southern Gas Networks plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Taxation (continued)
Timing differences are differences between the Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in
the financial statements that arises from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in
periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that, on the
basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
‘enacted by the balance sheet date that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Where items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity are chargeable to or deductible for
tax purposes, the resulting current or deferred tax expense or income is presented in the same
component of comprehensive income or equny as the transaction or other event that resulted in the
tax expense or income.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

. \
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if. a) the Company has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and b) the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

i. Turnover

Turnover is stated net of value added tax and is attributable to the continuing activity of transportation
of natural gas and the provision of related services. Turnover is recognised to the extent that there is
a right to consideration and is recorded at the value of the consideration due. Turnover includes an
assessment of transportation services supplied to customers between the date of the last meter
reading and the year end.

Where revenues received or receivable differ from the amount permitted by regulatory agreements,
adjustments will be made to future prices to reflect this over or under recovery.

j- Employee benefits
i Defined benefit pension scheme

The Company participates in a group wide defined benefit pension plan administered by the ultimate
parent undertaking, Scotia Gas Networks Limited. The net defined benefit cost of the plan is charged
and accounted for based on the proportionate number of members relating to the Company. The
contributions payable by the Company is determined on the same basis as the charging policy
above.

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to operating profit are the costs arising from
employee services rendered during the year and the cost of plan introductions, benefit changes,
settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs. The net interest cost on the
net defined benefit liability is charged to profit or loss and included within finance costs.
Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on scheme assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income.
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Southern Gas Networks plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

¥

j- Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the
Company, in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date.

A surplus was recognised due to change in actuarial assumptions. It is probable that the surplus
recognised will result in reduced amount of future contributions to the scheme or in the form of
refund from the scheme. Since the amount recognised is within the cap allowed under regulation,
management deem the recognition of surplus appropriate.

ii.  Defined contribution pension scheme

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to the profit and loss account in respect of
pension costs and other retirement benefits is the contributions payable in the year. Differences
between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as elther
accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

k. Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at that date.

Other exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for
exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see below),
and exchange differences arising on gains or losses on non- monetary items which are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

I. Leases
i Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases, hire purchase contracts and other similar arrangements, which
confer rights and obligations similar to those attached to owned assets, are capitalised as tangible
fixed assets at the fair value of the leased asset (or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments as determined at the inception of the lease) and are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and their useful lives. The capital elements of future lease obligations are recorded as
liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the
leases to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

ii. Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the
payments are not made on such a basis. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an
operating lease are similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

m. Borrowing costs capitalised

Borrowing costs which are directly attributable to the construction of qualifying tangible fixed assets

_are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Qualifying tangible fixed assets are considered to
be those of significant size or complexity, which typically are under construction for in excess of one
year and/or where project costs exceed a pre-determined threshold. The commencement of
capitalisation begins when both finance costs and expenditures for the asset are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to get the asset ready for use are in progress. Capitalisation ceases
when substantially all the activities that are necessary to get the asset ready for use are complete.
Borrowing costs are not capitalised in respect of construction projects which do not meet the defined
thresholds or relate to replacement expenditure.
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 Southern Gas Networks plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)
n. Grants and contributions

Customer contributions for connections to the network and for replacement expenditure diversions
are capital grants. NIC grants are considered revenue grants. '

Capital grants and customer contributions in respect of additions to fixed assets are treated as
deferred income and released to the profit and loss account over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets. ’

Revenue grants and contributions are credited to the profit and loss account in the year to which they
relate. :

Deferred income in respect of both revenue grants and contributions is included separately on the
face of the balance sheet due their materiality. Other deferred income items which are not
considered as material are shown separately in note 14.

o. Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are discounted where the impact of
discounting the expected future cash flows is material.

p. Financial instruments .

FRS 102 sections 11 and 12 give an accounting policy choice for financial instruments. The
Company has chosen to apply the recognition and measurement provisions of IAS 39 (as adopted
for use in the EU) and the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.

The Company’s funding, liquidity and exposure to interest rate risks are managed within a framework
of policies and guidelines authorised by the Board of Directors. In accordance with these policies
financial derivative instruments are used to manage interest rate and currency exposure.

Where appropriate these instruments are recorded at fair value and accounted for as described
below.

i.  Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that. exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income and expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than _
those financial assets designated as at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL).

ii.  Financial Assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs,
except for those financial assets classified as FVTPL, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets at the balance sheet date are classified into the following specified categories:
financial assets at FVTPL, ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets
and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
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Southern Gas Networks plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

p.- Financial instruments (continued)

iii. ~ Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of an impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost less impairment, the impairmént loss is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that would be received for the asset
if it were to be sold at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairmeht loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade debtors.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the prior impairment loss is
tested. to determine reversal. An impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired financial asset
to the extent that the revised recoverable value does not lead to a revised carrying amount higher
than the carrying value had no impairment been recognised.

iv.  Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

v. Trade debtors

Trade debtors are initially recognised at fair value. The carrying amount is reduced through the use
of provision. Appropriate provision for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised where the
estimated cash flows are less than the carrying amount. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the provision account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the provision account are recognised in profit or loss.

vi. Cash

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits, which are those deposits, which are repayable
on demand and available within 24 hours (one day) without penalty.

vii.  Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at ‘FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’.
viii. -~ Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL. :

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
. It has been incurred principaily for the purpose of disposal in the near future; or

. It is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

«  ltis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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Southern Gas Networks plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

p. Financial instruments (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

. Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

. The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy and information about
the Company is provided internally on that basis; or '

. It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives and IAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability.

ix.  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest
method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

x.  De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

xi.  Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company uses interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge interest
rate and foreign currency risk arising on debt instruments. On inception of the hedge relationship the
Company documents the relationships between the hedged item and the hedging instrument along
with the risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various transactions.
Furthermore, at inception:of the hedge and on an ongomg basis the Company documents whether
the hedging relationship is highly effective.

Changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated and are effective as hedges of future cash
flows are recognised directly in equity within the hedge reserve. The ineffective portion of the hedge
is recognised through the profit and loss account.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the
profit and loss account as they arise.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedge instrument expires or is terminated.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset where they are settled net as a matter of practlce
and there is legal right to offset.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2018

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

2

.

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both current
and future years.

Critical accounting judgements

a.

Cost classification — the allocation of overhead costs to capital investment projects is
subject to accounting judgement, particularly around the amount of time spent on different
activities. Guidelines have been established, and a Cost Allocation Model is used as part of
a process to determine the split of attributable overheads between capital expenditure and
operating expenditure.

Componentisation of replacement expenditure — As set out in note 1, capitalised
replacement expenditure is allocated to mains and services components with a range of
useful economic lives between 55 and 65 years. On transition to FRS 102, all replacement
expenditure incurred since 2005 has been assessed and allocated on an appropriate and
relevant basis where replacement projects have involved multiple activities, judgement has
been exercised to determine the appropriate accounts.

Key source of estimation uncertainty

a.

Useful lives of assets and residual value — in assessing the estimate of useful economic
lives and residual value, consideration is given to the economic life of the gas industry. The
depreciation policy is set out in note 1.

Retirement benefit schemes - the assumptions used in accounting for the defined benefit
pension scheme are based on estimates and are subject to uncertainties. These
assumptions are set out in note 20 and include: the discount rate on scheme liabilities,
mortality rates, pension increases, salary increases and inflation. The Company takes advice
from independent actuaries on the appropriateness of these assumptions.

Valuation of financial instruments — where financial instruments are recognised at fair
value there are uncertainties in forward yield curves used in discounted cash flow
calculations.

Environmental provision — in assessing the degree of contamination at the various sites
estimation is required where elements of the contamination are underground. In these cases,
it is difficult to assess with any certainty the extent of the contamination. The discount rate is
also a source of estimation. See note 16.

Revenue recognition - Turnover includes an assessment of transportation services
supplied to customers between the date of the last meter reading and the year end. Where
revenues received or receivable differ from the amount permitted by regulatory agreements,
adjustments will be made to future prices to reflect this over or under recovery.
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3 Operating Profit

Turnover arises entirely in the United Kingdom and is attributable to the continuing activity of
transportation of natural gas and the provision of related services, which the Directors consider a single
class of business.

2018 2017

£m £m

Tﬁrnover : . 7461 758.0
Distribution costs (433.2) (407.6)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets ’ (1.3) (4.9)
Other operating income 4.6 42
Total net operating costs : (429.9) (408.3)
Operating profit ) 316.2 349.7

Distribution costs include all the costs of operating the distribution network together with depreciation
and amortisation.
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4 Interest receivable and similar income
2018 2017
£m £m
Interest receivable on loans to other Group undertakings 1.7 3.8
Net interest on defined benefit Iiabilit_y (éee note 21) 04 16
Other interest receivable 2.3 -
44 54.
5 Interest payable and similar charges
2018 2017
£m £m
Index linked bond interest 271 17.1
Other interest payable on bonds 91.3 88.0
Other interest payable 11 2.1
Unwind of discount 1.0 1.0
Movement in financial derivatives - 42.3 3.2
122.8 111:4

No borrowing costs have been capitalised during the year.
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6 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging/ (crediting):

N

2018 2017
£m £m

Auditor's remuneration 0.1 02
Amortisation of goodwill (see note 10) 58 5.7
Amortisation of intangible assets (see note 10) 8.8 11.7
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (see note 11) 105.0 100.4
Amortisation of customer contributions (see note 11) ' . (4.6) (4.2)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets : 1.3 4.9
Operating lease rentals 2.2 1.3

Auditor’'s remuneration comprises £73,000 (2017: £50,000) in respect of statutory audit services,
£50,000 (2017: £42,000) in respect of other services pursuant to legislation, £nil (2017: £105,000) in
respect of IT consultancy services. These services were provided by KPMG in the year ended 31
March 2018 and Deloitte in the year ended 31 March 2017.

7 Employee information and Directors’ emoluments

The Company had 606 full time equivalent employees as at 31 March 2018 (2017: 663). The average
monthly number of full time equivalent employees during the year was 632 (2017: 690).

The Directors received remuneration totalling £45,000 (2017: £32,000) for their services to the
Company during the year. No retirement benefits are accruing in the year or in the prior year to any
Directors under money- purchase or defined benefit schemes, in respect of their services to the
Company.

—

Staff costs for the Company during the year4are as follows:

2018 2017
£m £Em

Staff costs
Wages and salaries : 28.2 30.4
Social security costs o 3.2 3.2
Pension costs (see noté 21) 17.6 17.5
49.0 - 511
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8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities
a) Analysis of the tax charge/(credit) on profit on ordinary activities
' 2018 2017
£m £m
Current tax
UK Corporation tax on profits for the year 47.4 59.0
Adjustment in respect 6f prior periods {1.9) (7.3)
Total current tax charge 45.5 51.7
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences . (8.6) (8.6)
Effect of change in tax rate - (31.3)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 1.6 (8.7)
Total deferred tax credit . (7.0) (48.6)
Total tax charge/(credit) on profit on ordinary activities 385 31
b) “Factors affecting total ta‘x charge/(credit) for the year: )
2018 2017
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 197.8 243.7 .
Profit on ordinary activities multiplie.d by standard rate of corporation tax '
in the UK of 19% (2017: 20%) , 37.6 487
Effects of: ‘
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.2 0.3
Non-deductible goodwill . 11 11
Income not taxable in determining taxable profit - -
Depreciation on non-qualifyiné assets 0.4 0.3
Chargeable gain on disposal (0.7) -
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax provision - (31.3)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (0.3) (16.0)
Total tax charge/(credit) on profit on ordinary activities 38.5 3.1
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8 Tax on profit on ordinary-activities (continued)
The standard rate of corporation tax applied to reported profit on ordinary activities is 19% (2017: 20%)

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 21% to 20% (effective from 1 April 2015) was
substantively enacted on 2 July 2013. Further reductions to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017) and to
. 18% (effective 1 April 2020) were substantively enacted on 26 October 2015, and an additional
reduction to 17% (effective 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted on 6 September 2016. This will
reduce the company's future current tax charge accordingly. The deferred tax asset at 31 March 2018
has been calculated based on these rates.

Finance (No 2) Act 2015 introduced legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to
19% from 1 April 2017 and Finance Bill 2016 reduced the main rate of corporation-tax to 17% from 1
April 2020. As these changes had been substantively enacted at 31 March 2017, deferred tax was
calculated accordingly at that date and this has had nil effect on the Company's deferred tax liability
at 31 March 2018 (2017: £30.6m). There is no expiry date on timing differences, unused tax losses or
tax credits. :

9 . Dividends

Dividends paid for the year ended 31 March 2018 amount to £1,046.5m of which £117.0m is a cash
dividend (cash dividend of 73.03p per share) (2017: £135.0m).

The remaining £929.5m of the dividend in the year is due to the repayment of amounts owed from

the Company's parent, Scotia Gas Networks Ltd, the dividends have been offset against the historic
intercompany balance. No further dividends were proposed.
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10 Intangible fixed assets

Goodwill Software  Total
. £m £m £m
. Cost
At 31 March 2017 287 A 1037 3912
Additions : . - 6.5 6.5
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2018 287.5 110.2 397.7
Amortisation

At 31 March 2017 | (68.2) (64.5) (132.7)
Charge for the year (5.8) (8.8) (14.6)
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2018 . (74.0) (73.3) (147.3)

Net book value :
At 31 March 2018 ' : . , 213.5 36.9 250.4
258.5

At 31 March 2017 219.3 39.2

The goodwill, which arose on the acquisitions of the business by the Company is being amortised on
a straight-line basis over 50 years. This is the period over which the Directors estimate that the value

of the underlying business acquired is expected to exceed the value of the underlying assets.

A review for impairment of goodwill is carried out at the end of each financial year. No impairment

loss has been recorded in the current year or prior years.
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11 Tangible fixed assets

Motor
Short . vehicles
leasehold Freehold Plantand and office
properties Properties machinery equipment Total
. Group ’ £m ~_£m £m ~ £m £m
Cost |
At 1 April 2017 0.5 65.2 4,782.7 70.5 4,918.9
Additions ' - 7.0 266.6 57 279.3
Disposals - - (9.8) (0.2) . (10.0)
At 31 March 2018 0.5 72;2 5,039.5 76.0 5,188.2
Depreciation
At 1 April 2017 (0.1) (18.7) (793.5) (38.6) (850.9)
Charge for the year . - (3.7) ©947)  (66) (105.0)
Disposals - - 3.9 0.2 41
At 31 March 2018 (0.1) (22.4) (884.3) ‘(45.0) (951.8)
At 31 March 2018 04 . 49.8 4,155.2 31.0 4,236.4
" At31 March 201? 0.4 46.5 3,989.2 31.9 4,068.0‘

The Company has leased motor vehicles and office equipment which are considered to meet the
definition of finance leases and are accounted for accordingly. The net book value of assets within
motor vehicles and office equipment held under finance leases is £nil as at 31 March 2018 (2017:
£0.2m). The Company holds land within Freehold Properties and in line with accounting standards
this is not depreciated.
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11 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Customer contributions

The Company has recsived customer contributions relating to plant and machinery. In accordance
with the Company's accounting policy the assets are capitalised within fixed assets and the
contributions are recognised as deferred income in the balance sheet. The connections contributions
are from customers being connected to the network and replacement contributions are related to the
diversion of gas mains. The deferred income is released to the profit and loss account over the
estimated lives of the related assets. The amount deferred under this policy was as follows:

_Connections Replacement Total
2018 2018 2018
‘£m £m £m
Customer contributions brought forward 131.9 54.8 186.7
Customer contributions received in year 12.3 4.4 16.7
Amortisation in year . (3.8) (1.0) (4.6)
140.6 58.2 198.8
12 Fixed asset investments
2018 2017
£m £m
Other investments ‘
Cost and net book value 0.2 0.2

Principal Company investments
The Company has investments in the following:

Registered office

Holding % address Principal activity |
Other investments:
16,050 Lansdowne Transportation transactional
. Ordinary A Gate, 65 New services on behalf of all the
Xoserve Limited Shares at £1 16.1 Road, Solihul, major gas network .
each. B91 3DL transportation companies.

Xoserve Limited is 16.1% owned by the Company. During the year the Company received dividends

of £nil (2017: £nil) during the year in relation to this investment.
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13 Debtors
2018 2017
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors ) | 62.7 65.2
Amounts ewed by Group undertakings . - 894.1
Prepayments and accrued income | 94 4.8
Derivative financial assets ' 22 | 4.4
743 - 968.5

The movement in amounts owed by Group undertakings are primarily amodnts due from the
- Company’s parent, Scotia Gas Networks Limited. Recoverability has been secured through the
payment of dividends (note 18) from existing dlstrlbutable reserves which have been offset against the

outstanding balance.
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14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2018 2017
£m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts - 29
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts - 0.1
Trade creditors - 10.6 16.6
Other creditors 12.0 14.2
Other taxation and social security 38.6 52.5
Accrued interest 35.(} 35.2‘
Other accruals 85.1 74.3
Deferred income 20.8 17.4
Amounts owed to group undertakings 213 -
£300m 5.125% fixed rate due 2018 299.8 -
£50m floating rate EIB maturing 2018 50.0 -
£50m floating rate EIB maturing 2019 50.0 -
' | - 624.0 212.2
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15 Creditoré: amounts falling due after more than one year

2018 2017
£m Em
Bonds:
Fixed rate and index linked:
£250m 2.013% index linked due 2035 ' 240.4 231.5
£150m 2.066% index linked due 2025 - _ ) 216.5 208.6
£15m 2.580% index linked due 2028 . 19.5 18.8
£300m 5.125% fixed rate due 2018 ' - 299.6
£215m 4.875% fixed rate due 2020 ‘ 214.8 214.7
£375m 4.875% fixed rate due 2029 3741 374.0
£225m 6.38% fixed rate due 2040 _ 223.8 223.8
£300m 4.875% fixed rate due 2023 ' 298.6 298.4
£350m 2.5% fixed rate due 2025 347.3 346.9
£400m 3.1% fixed rate loan notes due 2036 397.2 -
2,332.2 - 2,216.3
Floating rate:
£50m floating rate note due 2018 - 50.0
£50m floating rate note due 2019 ' - 50.0
£125m floating rate note due 2025 125.0 125.0
£80m floating rate note due .2026 80.0 80.0
£60m floating rate loan note due 2026 60.0 60.0
£35m floating rate loan note due 2026 ) 35.0 35.0
306.0 400.0
Total bonds | : 2,632.2 2,616.3
Derivative financial liabilities — mirror swaps’ 431 52:3

2,675.3 2,668.6

The above borrowings are unsecured and are stated after the deduction of unamortised issue costs
of £9.9m (2017: £8.3m). These costs together with the interest expense are allocated to the profit
and loss account over the term of the borrowings. Interest is calculated using the effective interest
rate method.

Certain interest costs in respect of index-linked bonds are not payable until the principal amount of
the bond is repaid and are included within the carrying value of the borrowings stated above. The
amount included in the carrying value of the berrowings at 31 March 2018 is £331.0m (2017:
£157.4m).

The total revolving credit facility is £240.0m and expires in March 2023. The facility was undrawn at
the year end.
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15 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

(continued)

Included within creditors falling due after more than one year are derivatives at fair value through
profit and loss with a net fair value of £43.1m (2017: £52.3m), which are subject to net settlement
provisions with a single counterparty. This portfolio comprises long dated pay fixed/receive floating
interest rate swaps originally taken out in 2005-06 to fix the Company’s interest cost over periods out

to 2025, together with pay floating/receive fixed swaps taken out at a later date. | he cash flow

payment dates and floating leg payment terms match off, although the fixed interest payable on the
offsetting swaps is in excess of the original swaps. Changes in the fair value of the portfolio on a net

basis are recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise.

Maturity of borrowings:

gBonds and bank loans:

1 2018 . 2017

£m £m

Between one and five years 588.4 614.3

After five years 1,646.4 2,002.0

2,2348 2,616.3

On demand or within one year '400.0 29

2,634.8 2,619.2

Finance leases:
2018 2017
£m £m
Between one and two years - -

On demand or within one year - 0.1.

- 0.1
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16 Provisions for liabilities

Cther

Group ’ ' Environmental Deferred tax Provisions Total

£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2017 176 520.0 5.2 .542.8
Utilised during the year - - (0.5) (0.5)
Arising during the year . 4.1 - 1.2 53
Net movement in deferred tax - 11.0 - 11.0
Amortisation of discount 0.9- - 0.2 1.1
At 31 March 2018 22,6 531.0 6.1 559.7

Environmental

The environmental provision represents the Directors’ best estimate of environmental restoration
costs, where the Company has a legal obligation to restore sites at the balance sheet date. The
provision has been discounted and is stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The provision is expected to be utilised over the next fourteen years.

Other provisions

Other provisions include asbestos related liabilities. The provision has been discounted and is stated
at the present value of the estimated expenditure to settle the obligation. The provision is expected to

be utilised over the next 32 years.
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16 \Provisions for liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred.tax is provided as follows:

2018 2017

£m £m

Accelerated capital allowances (510.6) (518.5)

Fair value movements in financial derivatives ' (0.6) (1.0)

Deferréd tax on retirement benefit obligations ) , (19.8) - (0.5)

Provision for deferred tax (631.0) (520.0)
The movement in provision for deferred tax is as follows: /

| 2018 2017

£m £m

Opening balance ' (520.0) (574.8)

Credited to profit and loss account 7.0 48.6

Movement through reserves : (\18.0) 6.2

Provision for deferred tax (531.0) (520.0)

Deferred tax has been measured based upon corporation tax rates substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. (Information regarding rates of corporation tax can be found in note 8 to the
financial statements.) '

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where the Company has a legally enforceable right
to do so and where the assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on the same taxable entity or another entity within the Company.

The Company has no unrecognised deferred tax assets or liabilities.

17 Financial Instruments

The Company'’s funding, liquidity and exposure to interest rate, foreign currency exchange and credit
risks are managed within a framework of policies and guidelines authorised by the Board of Directors.
In accordance with these policies, and in accordance with covenants set out as part of bond issuances
made by the Company, financial derivatives are used to manage financial exposures.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of SGN MidCo Limited and accordingly is, under FRS 102

exempt from the disclosures required under sections 11 and 12 as these are detailed in the annual
report of Scotia Gas Networks Limited. )
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18 Called up share capital and reserves
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 - Number £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 each 160,174,772 160.2
The Company’s other reserves are as follows:
Hedge Profit and
reserves loss account
£m £m
At 1 April 2017 (16) 15362
Profit for the financial year ) 159.3'
Movement on cash flow hedges 0.8 -
Remeasurement of net defined benefit pension asset (see note 20) - 106.2
Deferred tax movements relating to items of other comprehensive
income: ’

- Pension asset - (18.0)
Total comprehensive income 0.8 247.5
Dividends paid - (1,046.5)
At 31 March 2018 (0.8)

737.2

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative portion of gains and losses on hedging instruments

deemed effective in hedging variable interest rate risk of recognised financial instruments or foreign
exchange risk in firm commitments or highly probable forecast transactions. Amounts accumulated in

this reserve are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods in which the hedged item affects profit or

loss or when the hedging relationship ends.

A proportion of dividends paid in the year is due -to the repayment of amounts owed from the
Company’s parent, Scotia Gas Networks Limited, the dividends have been offset against the historic

intercompany balance.
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19 Financial commitments

Capital projects contracted for by the Company but not provided in the financial information
amounted to £17.2m at 31 March 2018 (2017 £18.9m). Within this amount £4.4m (2017: £3.1m) is
related to intangible assets.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for the Company are
as follows:

Other Land and buildings
2018 2017 2018 2017
£fm £m £m £m
- less than one year 1.6 1.0 0.3 0.4
- between two to.five years 2.6 _ 1.4 1.2 1.2
- after five years . : ' - - 11.2 11.0

20 Em'ployee benefits

Defined contribution schemes

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying
employees of the Group.

The amount recognised in the profit and loss account is as follows:

2018 2017
£m £m
Amount charged in respect of defined contribution schemes : .34 29

Defined benefit schemes

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of SGN MidCo Limited. The ultimate parent undertaking
is Scotia Gas Networks which operates the Scotia Gas Networks Pension Scheme, a defined benefit
scheme for a significant number of its employees of its subsidiaries who prior to 1 December 2005
were previously members of the Lattice Company Scheme and had joined prior to 31 March 2002.
Employees joining the Lattice Company Scheme after 31 March 2002.were entitled to join a defined
contribution scheme. Under the Group cost allocation plan, the Company accounts for its agreed
share of the total net defined benefit cost, based on the proportionate members rélating to the
Company.

The most recent full actuarial valuations of scheme assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation were carried out at 31 March 2015, a limited actuarial review has been carried out by
Hymans Robertson LLP at 31 March 2018. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the projected unit credit
method.
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20 Employee benefits (continued)

As at 31 As at 31
March 2018 March 2017

Key assumptions used:

Retail price inflation 3.2% p.a. ' 3.3% p.a.
Consumer price inflation 2.2% p.a. 2.3% p.a.
Pension increase rate RPI ' 3.2% p.a. 3.3%p.a.
Salary increase rate 3.0% p.a. 3.1% p.a.
Discount rate 2.7% p.a. 2.7% p.a.

The discount rate is based on the return of high quality corporate bonds. -

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension liabilities reflect the characteristics of
the Scheme membership (‘VitaCurves’) for base mortality, with an allowance for further

) improvements in life expectancy in line with the medium cohort adjustments subject to a 1.5% p.a.
underpin in the longevity assumption. The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

As at31 March 2018 2017 2016

Male Female Male Female Male Female
Members currently aged 65 . 22 24 24 25 24 25
Members currently aged 45 24 26 27 28 27 28
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20 Employee benefits (continued)

The analysis of scheme assets and the amount included in the balance sheet arising from the
Company’s obligations in respect of its defined benefit retirement benefit schemes at the balance
sheet date is as follows:

As at 31 March

2018 2017

Fair Fair

Value Value

£m £m

Equities _ , " 1573 181.9
Government bonds? : 2117 177.4
Corporate bonds . 169.3 225.3
Property ' 13.3 33.0
Cash 204 212
Insurance contracts _ | 48.6 545
Total market value of vassets . 620.6 693.3
Actuarial value of liabilities (504.2) (690.4)
Nét pension asset ‘ | ) 116.4 29

The fair value of scheme assets at 31 March 2018 are based on the bid price where available. The fair value
of property is based on the mid price and the value of the single unit price funds is based on the single unit
price. ‘

To reduce the risk of vdlatility in the Scheme’s funding level, a liability driven investment (LDI)
strategy forms part of the assets employed within the investment strategy of the Scheme. The LDI
strategy provides c71% interest rate protection and ¢81.5% inflation protection as at 31 March 2018
with respect to the pension scheme liabilities of ¢.£1.34bn (valued using a UK-government bond yield
curve). The Scheme assets which provide this interest rate and inflation protection are managed by
BlackRock and Goldman Sachs and include a variety of instruments e.g. UK government bonds
(gilts), interest rate swaps, inflation swaps, gilt repos and corporate bonds. The Scheme has
implemented a pensioner buy in which also contributes to the total interest rate and protection ratios
referred to above. :

2 Including LDI repurchase agreement liabilities.

56



Southern Gas Networks plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2018

20 Employee benefits (continued)

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2018 2017
£m £m
Opening defined benefit obligation (690.4) (594.4)
Current service cost - (13.8) (14.8)
Administration costs ( (0.2) (0.3)
Interest cost (16.2) (20.4)
Actuarial (losses)/gains 94.1 (157.5)
Benefits paid 122.3 97.0
Closing defined benefit obligation (504.2) (690.4)
Movement in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:
2018 2017
£m £m
_Opening fair value of scheme assets ~ 693.3 625.3
Interest income on scheme assets 16.5 22.0
Cbntributions from Southern Gas Networks Plc 21.0 244
Remeasurement of scheme assets 121 118.6
Benefits paid (122.3) (97.0)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 620.6 693.3

The actual gain on scheme assets was £25.1m (2017: gain of £140.6m).
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20 Employee benefits (continued)

Amounts recognised in the brofit and loss account in respect of these defined benefit schemes are

as follows:

2018 2017

£m - fm

Curren‘f service cost (13.8) (14.8)

Administration costs (0.2) (0.3)

Total charged to operating profit: (14.0) (15.1)

Expected return on schem;a éssets 16.5 22.0

Interest charge on scheme liabilities (16.2). (20.4)

Net interest credit/(cost) 0.3 1.6

Net charge to the profit and loss account (13.7) (13.5)

2018 2017

£m £m

Actuarial gain/(loss) on scheme assets 121 118.6

Actuarial gain/(loss) on scheme obligations ) 94.1 (157.5)

Gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive income 106.2 (38.9)
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21 Parent company and related party transactions
The immediate parent undertaking is SGN MidCo Limited.

The uitimate parent undertaking is Scotia Gas Networks Limited, a Company registered in England
and Wales. '

" Scotia Gas Networks Limited is owried by a consortium consisting of SSE plc (33%), Borealis
Infrastructure Europe (UK) Limited (25%) which is indirectly wholly owned by OMERS Administration
Corporation, OTPPB Investments (UK) Limited (25%), which is owned by Ontario Teachers' Pension
Plan Board, and Blue Spyder B 2016 Limited (17%), which is owned by Abu Dhabi Investment

" Authority. It is the opinion of the Directors that the parent Company, Scotia Gas Networks Limited,
has no single controlling party as that Company is controlled jointly by the consortium.

In accordance with FRS102 the Company-is exempt from disclosing transactions with subsidiaries
that are wholly-owned by the group.

Transactions with shareholders

Amounts owéd to shareholders and loans from shareholders are set out below:

2018 2017
£m £m

Other amounts owed to shareholders: . ,
SSE plc ' 9.3 8.7

pe

The amounts owed to shareholders mainly comprise amounts payable in respect of a managed
service agreement for corporate services and material purchases.

The following transactions took place during the year between the Company and the SSE plc group
of companies (“SSE").

2018 2017
£m £m
Sales of goods and services ‘ . 94.0 102.7

Purchase of goods and services . (27.6) (31.3)

Sales of goods and services to SSE primarily represent gas transportation services. At 31 March
2018 an amount of £nil was owed by SSE in relation to these services. ‘

SSE provides services to the Company in the form of a management services agreement for

corporate services. The Company aiso purchases certain items such as consumables stock,
shrinkage gas and public liability insurance from SSE.
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22 Subsequent events

There are no subsequent events to report.
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